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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

FORT MYERS DIVISION 
 

  
PHELAN HOLDINGS, INC., 
d/b/a PINCHER=S CRAB SHACK,      
a Florida corporation,     
 

Plaintiff,   
 

 
v.          CIVIL ACTION NO. ___________________ 
 
 
WENDY=S INTERNATIONAL, INC., 
an Ohio corporation,  
and VARIOUS JOHN DOES, JANE DOES, 
and ABC COMPANIES,  
 

Defendants, 
                                    / 
 
 

VERIFIED COMPLAINT 
 

INJUNCTIVE RELIEF SOUGHT 
 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 
 
 

Plaintiff PHELAN HOLDINGS, INC., a Florida corporation, d/b/a PINCHER=S 

CRAB SHACK (hereinafter APlaintiff@) by and through its undersigned counsel, hereby 

files this Complaint against Defendants WENDY=S INTERNATIONAL, INC., an Ohio 

corporation, and VARIOUS JOHN DOES, JANE DOES and ABC COMPANIES 

(hereinafter collectively referred to as ADefendants@), for Federal Trademark Infringement,    

Federal Unfair Competition, Federal Trademark Counterfeiting, Federal False Designation 
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of Origin, Federal False and Misleading Description of Fact, Federal False or Misleading 

Representation of Fact,  Federal Passing Off, Florida Trademark Infringement, Florida 

Deceptive and Unfair Business Practices, Florida Injury to Business Reputation and 

Dilution, Florida Unfair Competition, Florida Unjust Enrichment, Florida 

Misappropriation, Florida False Designation of Origin, and Florida Passing Off and alleges 

the following: 

 

JURISDICTION 

1. This is a complaint for Federal Trademark Infringement, Federal Unfair 

Competition, Federal Trademark Counterfeiting, Federal Unfair Competition, 

Federal False Designation of Origin, Federal False and Misleading Description of 

Fact, Federal False or Misleading Representation of Fact, Federal Passing Off, 

Florida Trademark Infringement, Florida Deceptive and Unfair Business Practices, 

Florida Injury to Business Reputation and Dilution, Florida Unfair Competition, 

Florida Unjust Enrichment, Florida Misappropriation, Florida False Designation of 

Origin, and Florida Passing Off. 

2. This Court has original jurisdiction over this action under 28 U.S.C. '' 1331, 1332, 

15 U.S.C. '' 1114, 1116, 1117, 1125 and related statutes and the principles of 

pendent jurisdiction.  

3. The matter in controversy exceeds, exclusive of interest and costs, the sum of TWO 
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MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000.00). 

4. Venue is proper in this Judicial District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. '' 1391 and 1400(a), 

in that Plaintiff=s claim arises in and a substantial part of the events or omissions 

giving rise to the claims asserted herein occurred in this District. 

 

 THE PARTIES 

5. Plaintiff is a Florida corporation, with its principal place of business in Naples, 

Florida and does business throughout Southwest Florida and particularly within 

this Middle District. 

6. Upon information and belief, Defendant, WENDY=S INTERNATIONAL, INC., 

is a corporation organized under the laws of Ohio, with its principal place of 

business at Dublin, Ohio and, at all times material to the issues presented herein, 

engaged in the illegal and infringing activities complained of hereinafter, had 

regular and systematic contacts with and currently does substantial business within 

this Middle District. 

7. Upon information and belief, Defendants, VARIOUS JOHN DOES, JANE 

DOES, and ABC COMPANIES, upon information and belief, are corporations, 

subsidiaries, affiliates, individuals or associated and related business entities who, 

along with Defendant, WENDY=S INTERNATIONAL, INC., have engaged in 

the unauthorized and illegal acts complained of herein.  The identities of these 

unnamed Defendants and the details of their legal associations with the named 
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Defendant herein presently are not and cannot be known to Plaintiff. 

8. Upon information and belief, all Defendants were acting in concert with or in a 

joint venture with the other, were and are the agents of each other and, in doing the 

wrongful acts complained of herein, each was acting within the course and scope of 

such agency.   

9. Upon information and belief, all Defendants, either individually and/or acting by 

and through their principals, officers, agents, employees and other active, 

conscious and dominant forces behind their activities have committed the acts 

complained of herein in interstate commerce. 

10. Upon information and belief, all Defendants, either individually or acting by and 

through their principals, officers, agents, employees and other active, conscious 

and dominant forces behind their activities have committed the acts complained of 

herein in this Middle District for their individual gain and profit, and are subject to 

the general and specific jurisdiction and venue of this Court. 

 

 PLAINTIFF AND ITS SUCCESS IN RESTAURANT INDUSTRY 

11. Plaintiff is a successful and respected chain of restaurants having popular and 

highly frequented locations throughout Southwest Florida, including the well 

known PINCHER’S CRAB SHACK® restaurants and locations. 

12. Plaintiff is engaged primarily in the offering of high quality prepared food, food 
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products, drinks, complementary items and many related goods and services. 

13. Plaintiff=s goods and services are offered to the public by many and various means 

and modes in Florida and throughout the United States in interstate commerce. 

14. Plaintiff=s favorable public reputation and commercial successes are well known to 

the consuming public as well as to its competitors, including to Defendants and, 

since its inception, Plaintiff has worked hard to separate itself from the competition 

and this hard work has been largely successful, as Plaintiff=s operations have 

steadily grown and expanded. 

15. The commercial identity and resulting valuable goodwill associated with Plaintiff=s 

business has resulted in a vast multitude of satisfied customers, considerable 

acclaim, a steady stream of unsolicited favorable reviews, and great public 

acceptance.  

16. Plaintiff=s attention to detail and unequalled approach to choosing the best 

ingredients and menu items to provide to the public have resulted in great success 

and an enviable reputation, making Plaintiff a leader in its field.  Plaintiff=s success 

is due, in significant part, to diligence and hard work but is also the result of 

Plaintiff’s significant investment in, and use of, its portfolio of valuable intellectual 

property rights, including its trademarks, which are used and displayed by Plaintiff 

in such a manner so as to be source identifiers, designations of origin and to 

separate it from its competition. 
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 PLAINTIFF=S TRADEMARK RIGHTS 

17. Among many other trademarks, Plaintiff is the owner of all right, title, and interest 

in the federally registered trademark YOU CAN=T FAKE FRESH7, United States 

Trademark Registration No. 3,749,600 for restaurant services (hereinafter 

APlaintiff=s Mark@).  See Exhibit 1. 

18. Plaintiff’s Mark appears, among many other places, in the below images: 
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19. Plaintiff offers to the consuming public, under Plaintiff=s Mark, its restaurant goods 

and services and many related goods and services. 

20. Plaintiff=s Mark is well known to the relevant consuming public, is fully valid and 

legally subsisting and is enforced by Plaintiff to prevent public confusion over the 

source of Plaintiff=s goods and services. 

21. Plaintiff=s goods have been widely advertised and extensively offered to the public 

under Plaintiff=s Mark.  Throughout the United States, Plaintiff=s Mark has been 

used in interstate commerce by Plaintiff since at least as early as 2004. 

22. Plaintiff=s Mark has become, through widespread and favorable public acceptance 

and recognition, an asset of substantial value as a symbol of Plaintiff, its quality 

goods, services and its goodwill.  

23. Plaintiff enjoys considerable success and an enviable reputation in its business and 

commercial enterprises due in large part to its use of, and rights in, Plaintiff=s Mark. 

24. Plaintiff uses and promotes its goods and services under Plaintiff=s Mark to create 

and benefit from brand and trade identity and to distinguish its goods and services 

from those sold by other restaurants.   

25. Plaintiff has made considerable expenditures to build its brand so successfully.  As 

a result of Plaintiff=s investments, Plaintiff=s Mark has become synonymous with 
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high quality restaurant services and goods and has become well known. 

26. Plaintiff=s Mark has been widely, prominently and continuously advertised and 

promoted to the public through many and various means and modes, including but 

not limited to on commercial signs, newspaper and other forms of printed and 

electronic materials, on menus, on radio and television ads and over the internet on 

its website at www.pincherscrabshack.com as is shown below: 

 

.   

27. By reason of such advertising and promotion, the public has come to recognize 

Plaintiff=s goods and services offered under Plaintiff=s Mark as emanating solely 

from Plaintiff. 

28. Plaintiff’s mark is beyond distinctive and unique.  Upon information and belief, in 

all of the history of the United States, no one has applied for or registered a mark 

with YOU CAN’T FAKE anything in it for restaurant services.  Plaintiff was the 

Case 2:11-cv-00392-CEH-DNF   Document 1    Filed 07/12/11   Page 8 of 55 PageID 8



 
 

                                                            
                                                                                  Page 9 

 

first ever. 

29. Plaintiff enforces its rights in Plaintiff=s Mark to protect itself and the public from 

infringers and in order to preserve what Plaintiff has worked so hard to build as a 

sole and exclusive source for restaurant services under Plaintiff’s Mark and 

Plaintiff’s excellent reputation.  

 ILLEGAL ACTS OF DEFENDANTS 

 

 

 

30. Defendants are in the business of operating and licensing others to operate a 

nationwide network of in excess of approximately 6,500 individual restaurants 
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which, like Plaintiff, offer a dine-in or takeout menu of assorted foods, drinks and 

related goods and services. 

31. Upon information and belief, Defendants maintain locations throughout the United 

States and in each and every state, including within the state of Florida, are one of 

the largest fast food chains in the United States, expend hundreds of millions of 

dollars each year in the advertising and promotion of their restaurant goods and 

services by various means and modes and generate billions of dollars in revenue 

from consumer sales each year. 

32. Defendants’ television, radio, and internet advertising occur in this Middle District 

and are viewed by customers in this Middle District. 

33. Defendants and Plaintiff compete for the same and/or substantially similar 

restaurant-going consumers. 

34. Upon information and belief, Defendants have adopted and used the term, YOU 

CAN’T FAKE FRESH, for Defendants’ food and restaurant services, and the same 

has been broadcast to the public in commercial advertising by Defendants. 

35. Defendants are responsible for openly and actively advertising, both in this Middle 

District and throughout the United States the following image by using the term 

“YOU CAN’T FAKE FRESH” for Defendants’ food and restaurant services 

(hereinafter the “Infringing Mark 1”). 

36. Defendants caused the image below, among others, to be broadcast to the 
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consuming public on multiple occasions: 

 

37. The Infringing Mark 1 and Plaintiff’s Mark are exactly the same.  

38. The Infringing Mark 1 and Plaintiff’s Mark sound exactly the same when spoken. 

39. The Infringing Mark 1 and Plaintiff’s Mark are marketed to exactly the same group 

of consumers, namely restaurant-going consumers. 

40. The Infringing Mark 1 and Plaintiff’s Mark are broadcast to consumers in exactly 

the same location, namely Southwest Florida, among other geographies. 

41. The Infringing Mark 1 and Plaintiff’s Mark are for the exact same services, namely 

restaurant services. 

42. Upon information and belief, Defendants have openly and actively engaged in the 

unauthorized, infringing, unlicensed, and imitative use of the exact same trademark 

registered exclusively to Plaintiff, namely YOU CAN’T FAKE FRESH for the 

exact same services protected in Plaintiff’s federal registration, namely “restaurant 

services”, in the exact same geographic area in which Plaintiff uses its Mark, in 

Case 2:11-cv-00392-CEH-DNF   Document 1    Filed 07/12/11   Page 11 of 55 PageID 11



 
 

                                                            
                                                                                  Page 12 

 

commercial advertising and in exact and direct competition with Plaintiff .  See  

Exhibit 2. 

43. Additionally, as part of the illegal conduct described herein, Defendants caused the 

below image to be broadcast into this Middle District, in television advertising, 

using the term, “YOU CAN’T FAKE FRESH: 

 

 

44. The above use of YOU CAN’T FAKE FRESH takes place within a motion picture 

or video presentation of Defendants’ commercial advertising. 

45. The Defendants’ use of YOU CAN’T FAKE FRESH mark is, for all intents and 

purposes, the functional equivalent of the Plaintiff’s Mark and is intended by 

Defendants to, and does, give rise to the same commercial impression as the 

Plaintiff’s Mark. 
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46. Plaintiff has at no time granted to Defendants any permission or license to use the 

Plaintiff’s Mark.  

47. The use of the Infringing Mark 1, YOU CAN’T FAKE FRESH, by Defendants is 

unauthorized and without permission. 

 

DEFENDANTS’ USE OF YOU CAN’T FAKE REAL 
IS FRUIT OF THE POISONOUS TREE 

 

 

48. Out of the use of the Infringing Mark 1, Defendants hatched an additional plan of 

action.  Defendants developed yet another mark for the exact same services and 

goods as that used under the Infringing Mark 1, namely the Defendants adopted the 

mark “YOU CAN’T FAKE REAL" (hereinafter “Infringing Mark 2”).   

49. It may appear to a consumer that Defendants’ birth of the Infringing Mark 2 as 
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proceeding from or in first conjunction with Infringing Mark 1, is “fruit of the 

poisonous tree”, so to speak, in that it is the progeny of infringing acts.   

50. The explanatory, visual, textual, collateral, and ancillary materials used by 

Defendants in connection with their use of the term YOU CAN’T FAKE REAL 

demonstrate clearly that Defendants wish the reader and consumer to interpret the 

term “REAL” as being synonymous with and conveying the same commercial 

impression as that which is created by the term “FRESH”. 

51. Defendants created a connection between the term YOU CAN’T FAKE FRESH, 

and the term YOU CAN’T FAKE REAL, and advertised that connection 

repeatedly. 

52. The image immediately below is a true and accurate depiction of the content 

offered at http://www.wendys.com/ads/ during the month of July 2011. 

 

53. Infringing Mark 1 and Infringing Mark 2 are hereinafter also collectively referred 

to as the “Infringing Marks”. 
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54. Defendants’ Infringing Mark 2 is confusingly similar to Plaintiff’s Mark. 

55. Defendants’ use of both Infringing Mark 1 and Infringing Mark 2 is engendering 

bad will in connection with Plaintiff’s innovative, first, and distinctive mark, as the 

public responds to particular details about how Defendants do business, such as that 

shown in Exhibit 3. 

56. Defendants have apparently targeted for use of their Infringing Mark 1 and 

Infringing Mark 2, with special attention, those restaurants in Plaintiff’s geographic 

area, as shown by the prominent national placement, over all other Wendy’s 

locations, of the internet advertising for Wendy’s Cape Coral, Florida location. See 

Exhibit 2. 

57. Defendants’ conduct harms Plaintiff and Plaintiff’s trademark rights and has, and 

is, causing damage to Plaintiff needlessly. 

58. This public offering for sale of competing goods and services under the Infringing 

Mark 1 and Infringing Mark 2 by Defendants is and has been without the consent, 

permission or authority of Plaintiff, as Defendants do not have any legitimate rights 

in or licenses to the Infringing Mark 1 or Infringing Mark 2. 

59. Infringing Mark 1 and Infringing Mark 2 have each been used by Defendants and 

offered to the public utilizing this District as a forum for their infringing activities 

with actual and/or constructive knowledge that neither are genuine nor authorized 

by Plaintiff. 
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60. Defendants have engaged in the widespread, regular and systematic transaction of 

business under the Infringing Mark 1 as well as under Infringing Mark 2, have 

engaged in the commission of tortious acts in Florida, including within this Middle 

District, and are subject to the jurisdiction of this Court. 

61. By using the Infringing Marks and offering services and goods for sale thereunder, 

Defendants, on a widespread basis, have misrepresented and falsely described to 

the general public the origin and source of Defendants= goods and services so as to 

deceive the public and deliberately create the likelihood of consumer confusion, 

which can include, but is not limited to, initial interest confusion and Areverse 

confusion@ as that term is recognized under the law. 

62. By using the Infringing Marks, and offering goods for sale thereunder, Defendants 

have caused and continue to cause mistake, or to deceive the consuming public as 

to the affiliation, connection, or association of Defendants with Plaintiff, or as to 

the origin, sponsorship, or approval of Defendants= goods and services, or 

commercial activities by the ultimate purchaser as to both the source and 

sponsorship of Defendants= goods and services. 

63. Upon information and belief, Defendants= goods and services offered under the 

Infringing Marks, to the extent that they are not the genuine article of Plaintiff and 

not fully authorized by Plaintiff, are or may be inferior in quality to the goods and 

services authorized to be sold by Plaintiff, and the sale thereof has, does, and will 
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continue to damage and dilute the goodwill Plaintiff has developed in connection 

with offering legitimate, authorized goods and services under Plaintiff=s Mark. 

64. Defendants, upon information and belief and with full knowledge of the notoriety 

of Plaintiff=s Mark, intended to, and did, trade on the goodwill associated with 

Plaintiff, and have misled and will continue to confuse, deceive and mislead the 

public in this regard.  

65. Defendants have advertised, distributed, offered for sale, and/or sold in the state of 

Florida and in interstate commerce, related goods and services under the Infringing 

Marks, thus creating the likelihood of confusion, deception, and mistake as to the 

source, affiliation, connection, or association of the Plaintiff’s genuine services , or 

as to the origin, sponsorship, or approval of Defendants= goods, services or 

commercial activities. 

66. The use by Defendants of either or both of the Infringing Marks constitutes a 

knowing use of a false designation of origin and a false description or 

representation that wrongly and falsely designates Defendants= goods and services 

offered to the public by Defendants as originating from, or connected with, 

Plaintiff, and constitutes using false descriptions of fact or misrepresentations in 

commerce. 

67. The imitation, reproduction, and unauthorized use of either or both of the 

Infringing Marks causes irreparable injury to Plaintiff, including injury to its 
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business reputation and dilution of the distinctive quality of Plaintiff=s Mark. 

68. Defendants= use of either or both of the Infringing Marks does, is likely to, cause 

Defendants to pass off their goods and services as those of Plaintiff=s, all to the 

detriment of Plaintiff and to the unjust enrichment of Defendants. 

69. Defendants= use of either or both of the Infringing Marks has caused, does cause, 

and/or is likely to continue to cause, damage to Plaintiff by tarnishing the valuable 

reputation and image associated with Plaintiff and its goods and services. 

70. Upon information and belief, the false and deceptive advertising of Defendants, as 

is set forth herein, is intention and is calculated to provide Defendants with 

commercial benefit to the detriment of its competitors, including Plaintiff. 

71. Upon information and belief, the false and deceptive advertising of Defendants, as 

is set forth herein, is directed to the same or similar consumers as those to which 

Plaintiff directs its advertising and is likely to deceive consumers into making a 

decision to purchase Defendant’s products over those offered by Plaintiff under 

Plaintiff’s Mark.        

72. Defendants= unlawful activities results in irreparable harm and injury to Plaintiff.  

Among other harms, it: 

a. deprives Plaintiff of its absolute right to determine the manner in which its 
goods and services are presented to the general public, including but not 
limited to the right to determine the scope, manner and expansion of its 
rights; 
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b. dilutes and/or tarnishes Plaintiff=s valuable and distinctive trademark rights;  
 

c. deceives the public as to the origin and sponsorship of such goods and 
services; 

 
d. wrongfully trades upon and cashes in on Plaintiff=s reputation and exclusive 

rights in its trademarks; 
 

e. deceives the public as to the nature, quality and characteristics of 
Defendants’ goods and services and, to the extent Defendants= goods and 
services are or may be of inferior quality or unauthorized for sale or 
distribution, irreparably harms and injures Plaintiff=s reputation; and 

 
73. Among the other relief sought herein, Plaintiff is entitled to a preliminary and 

permanent injunction restraining Defendants, their principals, officers, agents, 

servants, employees, and attorneys, and all persons acting in concert with them, 

from engaging in any further acts in violation of the applicable law, including but 

not limited to 15 U.S.C. '' 1114, 1117 and 1125.  

74. Plaintiff is further entitled to recover from Defendants all of the damages available 

under the applicable law, including but not limited to actual damages, damages for 

false advertising, damages for reverse confusion, damages as for and representing 

corrective advertising, treble damages and/or statutory damages, interest, and 

attorney fees and costs it has sustained and will sustain, and any gains, profits and 

advantages obtained by Defendants as a result of the acts as alleged herein.  At 

present, the amount of such damages, gains, profits, and advantages cannot be fully 

ascertained by Plaintiff. 
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 COUNT I 
 FEDERAL TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT 
 (15 U.S.C. '  1117) 

75. Plaintiff repeats and realleges all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as if 

fully set forth herein. 

76. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, with respect to Defendants= infringement of 

Plaintiff=s Mark, are likely to cause public confusion, mistake, or deception, and 

constitute trademark infringement in violation of 15 U.S.C. ' 1117. 

77. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, have caused irreparable injury and damage to 

Plaintiff and, unless restrained, will continue to do so.   

78. As a result, Plaintiff has suffered damages with interest. 

79. Plaintiff has no adequate, complete remedy at law. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants, including: 

a. a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining and restraining 
Defendants and their officers, directors, principals, agents, servants, 
employees, successors, assigns, attorneys, and all those persons in active 
concert or participation therewith who received actual notice of this Court=s 
orders: 

 
i. from causing likelihood of confusion, or causing mistake, or to 

deceive as to the affiliation, connection, or association of 
Defendants with Plaintiff or Plaintiff=s Mark, or as to the origin, 
sponsorship, or approval of his or her goods, services, or 
commercial activities, or causing injury to business reputation, 
or dilution of the distinctiveness of Plaintiff=s Mark, or 
Plaintiff=s forms of advertisement;  
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ii. from directly or indirectly falsely designating or representing 

that any goods or services are authorized, approved, associated 
with, or originating from, Plaintiff; 

 
iii. from directly or indirectly using the Infringing Marks or any 

confusingly similar variants, iterations, or forms thereof, which 
is likely to cause confusion or further irreparable harm to 
Plaintiff=s business reputation or goodwill; 

 
iv. from utilizing the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar 

variant in any shape or manner; 
 

v. from publishing, assembling, marketing, distributing, or 
otherwise utilizing any literature, business forms, 
advertisements, signs, or any other representations, regardless of 
the medium, which bear the Infringing Marks or any 
confusingly similar variant, and from otherwise unfairly 
competing in any way with Plaintiff;  
 

vi. to deliver up to Plaintiff all literature, advertisements, business 
forms, signs, and any other representations, regardless of form, 
which are in, or come to be in, Defendants= respective 
possession, custody, or control and which bear the Infringing 
Marks or any confusingly similar variant;  
 

vii. to notify their direct customers, agents, and representatives that 
the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar variant are not 
connected with Plaintiff; 
 

viii. to immediately institute full compliance with any order entered 
by this Court, and, within thirty days following the date of entry 
of any preliminary or permanent injunctive relief issued by this 
Court, propound and file a statement, under oath and penalty of 
perjury, that each and every injunctive provision has been fully 
and completely complied with; 
 
and for: 
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b. an accounting and payment of all profits gained by Defendants while 
engaging in the acts complained of herein; 

 
c. all monetary damages suffered by Plaintiff; 

 
d. an award of attorneys fees and costs pursuant to 15 U.S.C. ' 1117; and 

 
e. such other interlocutory and permanent relief as this Court may deem just 

and proper. 
 
 
 

COUNT II 
FEDERAL UNFAIR COMPETITION 

(15 U.S.C. ' 1125) 
 
80. Plaintiff repeats and realleges all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as if 

fully set forth herein. 

81. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, constitute unfair competition, of which is likely 

to cause confusion, mistake or deception in violation of 15 U.S.C. ' 1125. 

82. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, have caused irreparable injury and damage to 

Plaintiff and, unless restrained, will continue to do so.   

83. As a result, Plaintiff has suffered damages with interest. 

84. Plaintiff has no adequate, complete remedy at law. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants, including: 

a. a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining and restraining 
Defendants and their officers, directors, principals, agents, servants, 
employees, successors, assigns, attorneys, and all those persons in active 
concert or participation therewith who received actual notice of this Court=s 
orders: 
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i. from causing likelihood of confusion, or causing mistake, or to 

deceive as to the affiliation, connection, or association of 
Defendants with Plaintiff or Plaintiff=s Mark, or as to the origin, 
sponsorship, or approval of his or her goods, services, or 
commercial activities, or causing injury to business reputation, 
or dilution of the distinctiveness of Plaintiff=s Mark, or 
Plaintiff=s forms of advertisement;  

 
ii. from directly or indirectly falsely designating or representing 

that any goods or services are authorized, approved, associated 
with, or originating from, Plaintiff; 

 
iii. from directly or indirectly using the Infringing Marks or any 

confusingly similar variants, iterations, or forms thereof, which 
is likely to cause confusion or further irreparable harm to 
Plaintiff=s business reputation or goodwill; 

 
iv. from utilizing the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar 

variant in any shape or manner; 
 

v. from publishing, assembling, marketing, distributing, or 
otherwise utilizing any literature, business forms, 
advertisements, signs, or any other representations, regardless of 
the medium, which bear the Infringing Marks or any 
confusingly similar variant, and from otherwise unfairly 
competing in any way with Plaintiff; 

 
vi. to deliver up to Plaintiff all literature, advertisements, business 

forms, signs, and any other representations, regardless of form, 
which are in, or come to be in, Defendants= respective 
possession, custody, or control and which bear the Infringing 
Marks or any confusingly similar variant; 

 
vii. to notify their direct customers, agents, and representatives that 

the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar variant are not 
connected with Plaintiff; 

 
viii. to immediately institute full compliance with any order entered 
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by this Court, and, within thirty days following the date of entry 
of any preliminary or permanent injunctive relief issued by this 
Court, propound and file a statement, under oath and penalty of 
perjury, that each and every injunctive provision has been fully 
and completely complied with; 

 
and for: 

 
b. an accounting and payment of all profits gained by Defendants while 

engaging in the acts complained of herein; 
 

c. all monetary damages suffered by Plaintiff; 
 

d. an award of attorneys fees and costs pursuant to 15 U.S.C. ' 1125;  
 

e. and such other interlocutory and permanent relief as this Court may deem 
just and proper. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

COUNT III 
FEDERAL TRADEMARK COUNTERFEITING 

(15 U.S.C. § 1114 and 1116(d)) 
 

85. Plaintiff repeats and realleges all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as if 

fully set forth herein. 

86. Defendants’ acts, as alleged herein, constitute counterfeiting under 

15 U.S.C. § 1116(d), et seq. 

87. Defendants’ acts, as alleged herein, have caused irreparable injury and damage to 

Plaintiff and, unless restrained, will continue to do so. 
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88. As a result, Plaintiff is entitled to statutory damages under 15 U.S.C. § 1117(c) plus 

destruction of all goods bearing the Infringing Marks. 

89. Plaintiff has no adequate, complete remedy at law. 

 
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants, including: 

a. a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining and restraining 
Defendants and their officers, directors, principals, agents, servants, 
employees, successors, assigns, attorneys, and all those persons in active 
concert or participation therewith who received actual notice of this Court=s 
orders: 

 
i. from causing likelihood of confusion, or causing mistake, or to 

deceive as to the affiliation, connection, or association of 
Defendants with Plaintiff or Plaintiff=s Mark, or as to the origin, 
sponsorship, or approval of his or her goods, services, or 
commercial activities, or causing injury to business reputation, 
or dilution of the distinctiveness of Plaintiff=s Mark, or 
Plaintiff=s forms of advertisement;  

 
ii. from directly or indirectly falsely designating or representing 

that any goods or services are authorized, approved, associated 
with, or originating from, Plaintiff; 

 
iii. from directly or indirectly using the Infringing Marks or any 

confusingly similar variants, iterations, or forms thereof, which 
is likely to cause confusion or further irreparable harm to 
Plaintiff=s business reputation or goodwill; 

 
iv. from utilizing the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar 

variant in any shape or manner; 
  

v. from publishing, assembling, marketing, distributing, or 
otherwise utilizing any literature, business forms, 
advertisements, signs, or any other representations, regardless of 
the medium, which bear the Infringing Marks or any 
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confusingly similar variant, and from otherwise unfairly 
competing in any way with Plaintiff;  

  
vi. to deliver up to Plaintiff all literature, advertisements, business 

forms, signs, and any other representations, regardless of form, 
which are in, or come to be in, Defendants= respective 
possession, custody, or control and which bear the Infringing 
Marks or any confusingly similar variant;  
 

vii. to notify their direct customers, agents, and representatives that 
the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar variant are not 
connected with Plaintiff; 
  

viii. to immediately institute full compliance with any order entered 
by this Court, and, within thirty days following the date of entry 
of any preliminary or permanent injunctive relief issued by this 
Court, propound and file a statement, under oath and penalty of 
perjury, that each and every injunctive provision has been fully 
and completely complied with; 

 
and for: 

 
b. an accounting and payment of all profits gained by Defendants while 

engaging in the acts complained of herein; 
 

c. all monetary damages suffered by Plaintiff; 
 

d. an award of attorneys fees and costs pursuant to 15 U.S.C. ' 1117;  
 

e. and such other interlocutory and permanent relief as this Court may deem 
just and proper. 
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COUNT IV 
FEDERAL FALSE DESIGNATION OF ORIGIN 

(15 U.S.C. ' 1125) 
 

90. Plaintiff repeats and realleges all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as if 

fully set forth herein. 

91. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, constitute a false designation of origin, of 

which is likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception in violation of 

15 U.S.C. ' 1125. 

92. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, have caused irreparable injury and damage to 

Plaintiff and, unless restrained, will continue to do so.   

93. As a result, Plaintiff has suffered damages with interest. 

94. Plaintiff has no adequate, complete remedy at law. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants, including: 

a. a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining and restraining 
Defendants and their officers, directors, principals, agents, servants, 
employees, successors, assigns, attorneys, and all those persons in active 
concert or participation therewith who received actual notice of this Court=s 
orders: 

 
i. from causing likelihood of confusion, or causing mistake, or to 

deceive as to the affiliation, connection, or association of 
Defendants with Plaintiff or Plaintiff=s Mark, or as to the origin, 
sponsorship, or approval of his or her goods, services, or 
commercial activities, or causing injury to business reputation, 
or dilution of the distinctiveness of Plaintiff=s Mark, or 
Plaintiff=s forms of advertisement;  

 
ii. from directly or indirectly falsely designating or representing 
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that any goods or services are authorized, approved, associated 
with, or originating from, Plaintiff; 

 
iii. from directly or indirectly using the Infringing Marks or any 

confusingly similar variants, iterations, or forms thereof, which 
is likely to cause confusion or further irreparable harm to 
Plaintiff=s business reputation or goodwill; 

 
iv. from utilizing the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar 

variant in any shape or manner; 
 

v. from publishing, assembling, marketing, distributing, or 
otherwise utilizing any literature, business forms, 
advertisements, signs, or any other representations, regardless of 
the medium, which bear the Infringing Marks or any 
confusingly similar variant, and from otherwise unfairly 
competing in any way with Plaintiff; 

 
vi. to deliver up to Plaintiff all literature, advertisements, business 

forms, signs, and any other representations, regardless of form, 
which are in, or come to be in, Defendants= respective 
possession, custody, or control and which bear the Infringing 
Marks or any confusingly similar variant; 

 
vii. to notify their direct customers, agents, and representatives that 

the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar variant are not 
connected with Plaintiff; 

 
viii. to immediately institute full compliance with any order entered 

by this Court, and, within thirty days following the date of entry 
of any preliminary or permanent injunctive relief issued by this 
Court, propound and file a statement, under oath and penalty of 
perjury, that each and every injunctive provision has been fully 
and completely complied with; 
 
and for: 

 
b. an accounting and payment of all profits gained by Defendants while 

engaging in the acts complained of herein; 
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c. all monetary damages suffered by Plaintiff; 

 
d. an award of attorneys fees and costs pursuant to 15 U.S.C. ' 1125; and 

 
e. such other interlocutory and permanent relief as this Court may deem just 

and proper. 
     
 
 
 COUNT V 

FEDERAL FALSE AND MISLEADING DESCRIPTION OF FACT 
(15 U.S.C. ' 1125) 

 
95. Plaintiff repeats and realleges all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as if 

fully set forth herein. 

96. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, constitute a false and misleading description of 

fact, of which is likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception in violation of 

15 U.S.C. ' 1125. 

97. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, have caused irreparable injury and damage to 

Plaintiff and, unless restrained, will continue to do so.   

98. As a result, Plaintiff has suffered damages with interest. 

99. Plaintiff has no adequate, complete remedy at law. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants, including: 

a. a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining and restraining 
Defendants and their officers, directors, principals, agents, servants, 
employees, successors, assigns, attorneys, and all those persons in active 
concert or participation therewith who received actual notice of this Court=s 
orders: 
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i. from causing likelihood of confusion, or causing mistake, or to 

deceive as to the affiliation, connection, or association of 
Defendants with Plaintiff or Plaintiff=s Mark, or as to the origin, 
sponsorship, or approval of his or her goods, services, or 
commercial activities, or causing injury to business reputation, 
or dilution of the distinctiveness of Plaintiff=s Mark, or 
Plaintiff=s forms of advertisement;  

 
ii. from directly or indirectly falsely designating or representing 

that any goods or services are authorized, approved, associated 
with, or originating from, Plaintiff; 

 
iii. from directly or indirectly using the Infringing Marks or any 

confusingly similar variants, iterations, or forms thereof, which 
is likely to cause confusion or further irreparable harm to 
Plaintiff=s business reputation or goodwill; 

 
iv. from utilizing the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar 

variant in any shape or manner; 
 

v. from publishing, assembling, marketing, distributing, or 
otherwise utilizing any literature, business forms, 
advertisements, signs, or any other representations, regardless of 
the medium, which bear the Infringing Marks or any 
confusingly similar variant, and from otherwise unfairly 
competing in any way with Plaintiff; 

 
vi. to deliver up to Plaintiff all literature, advertisements, business 

forms, signs, and any other representations, regardless of form, 
which are in, or come to be in, Defendants= respective 
possession, custody, or control and which bear the Infringing 
Marks or any confusingly similar variant; 

 
vii. to notify their direct customers, agents, and representatives that 

the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar variant are not 
connected with Plaintiff; 

 
viii. to immediately institute full compliance with any order entered 
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by this Court, and, within thirty days following the date of entry 
of any preliminary or permanent injunctive relief issued by this 
Court, propound and file a statement, under oath and penalty of 
perjury, that each and every injunctive provision has been fully 
and completely complied with; 

 
and for: 

 
b. an accounting and payment of all profits gained by Defendants while 

engaging in the acts complained of herein; 
 

c. all monetary damages suffered by Plaintiff; 
 

d. an award of attorneys fees and costs pursuant to 15 U.S.C. ' 1125; and 
 

e. such other interlocutory and permanent relief as this Court may deem just 
and proper. 

 
 

COUNT VI 
FEDERAL FALSE OR MISLEADING REPRESENTATION OF FACT 

(15 U.S.C. ' 1125) 
 
100. Plaintiff repeats and realleges all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as if 

fully set forth herein. 

101. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, constitute a false or misleading representation 

of fact, of which is likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception in violation of 

15 U.S.C. ' 1125. 

102. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, have caused irreparable injury and damage to 

Plaintiff and, unless restrained, will continue to do so.   

103. As a result, Plaintiff has suffered damages with interest. 
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104. Plaintiff has no adequate, complete remedy at law. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants, including: 

a. a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining and restraining 
Defendants and their officers, directors, principals, agents, servants, 
employees, successors, assigns, attorneys, and all those persons in active 
concert or participation therewith who received actual notice of this Court=s 
orders: 

 
i. from causing likelihood of confusion, or causing mistake, or to 

deceive as to the affiliation, connection, or association of 
Defendants with Plaintiff or Plaintiff=s Mark, or as to the origin, 
sponsorship, or approval of his or her goods, services, or 
commercial activities, or causing injury to business reputation, 
or dilution of the distinctiveness of Plaintiff=s Mark, or 
Plaintiff=s forms of advertisement;  

 
ii. from directly or indirectly falsely designating or representing 

that any goods or services are authorized, approved, associated 
with, or originating from, Plaintiff; 

 
iii. from directly or indirectly using the Infringing Marks or any 

confusingly similar variants, iterations, or forms thereof, which 
is likely to cause confusion or further irreparable harm to 
Plaintiff=s business reputation or goodwill; 

 
iv. from utilizing the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar 

variant in any shape or manner; 
 

v. from publishing, assembling, marketing, distributing, or 
otherwise utilizing any literature, business forms, 
advertisements, signs, or any other representations, regardless of 
the medium, which bear the Infringing Marks or any 
confusingly similar variant, and from otherwise unfairly 
competing in any way with Plaintiff; 

 
vi. to deliver up to Plaintiff all literature, advertisements, business 

forms, signs, and any other representations, regardless of form, 
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which are in, or come to be in, Defendants= respective 
possession, custody, or control and which bear the Infringing 
Marks or any confusingly similar variant; 

 
vii. to notify their direct customers, agents, and representatives that 

the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar variant are not 
connected with Plaintiff; 

 
viii. to immediately institute full compliance with any order entered 

by this Court, and, within thirty days following the date of entry 
of any preliminary or permanent injunctive relief issued by this 
Court, propound and file a statement, under oath and penalty of 
perjury, that each and every injunctive provision has been fully 
and completely complied with; 

 
and for: 

 
b. an accounting and payment of all profits gained by Defendants while 

engaging in the acts complained of herein; 
 

c. all monetary damages suffered by Plaintiff; 
 

d. an award of attorneys fees and costs pursuant to 15 U.S.C. ' 1125; and 
 

e. such other interlocutory and permanent relief as this Court may deem just 
and proper. 

  
 
 

COUNT VII 
FEDERAL PASSING OFF 

(15 U.S.C. ' 1125) 
 
105. Plaintiff repeats and realleges all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as if 

fully set forth herein. 

106. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, constitute passing off, which is likely to cause 
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confusion, mistake or deception in violation of 15 U.S.C. ' 1125. 

107. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, have caused irreparable injury and damage to 

Plaintiff and, unless restrained, will continue to do so.   

108. As a result, Plaintiff has suffered damages with interest. 

109. Plaintiff has no adequate, complete remedy at law. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants, including: 

a. a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining and restraining 
Defendants and their officers, directors, principals, agents, servants, 
employees, successors, assigns, attorneys, and all those persons in active 
concert or participation therewith who received actual notice of this Court=s 
orders: 

 
i. from causing likelihood of confusion, or causing mistake, or to 

deceive as to the affiliation, connection, or association of 
Defendants with Plaintiff or Plaintiff=s Mark, or as to the origin, 
sponsorship, or approval of his or her goods, services, or 
commercial activities, or causing injury to business reputation, 
or dilution of the distinctiveness of Plaintiff=s Mark, or 
Plaintiff=s forms of advertisement;  

 
ii. from directly or indirectly falsely designating or representing 

that any goods or services are authorized, approved, associated 
with, or originating from, Plaintiff; 

 
iii. from directly or indirectly using the Infringing Marks or any 

confusingly similar variants, iterations, or forms thereof, which 
is likely to cause confusion or further irreparable harm to 
Plaintiff=s business reputation or goodwill; 

 
iv. from utilizing the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar 

variant in any shape or manner; 
 

v. from publishing, assembling, marketing, distributing, or 
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otherwise utilizing any literature, business forms, 
advertisements, signs, or any other representations, regardless of 
the medium, which bear the Infringing Marks or any 
confusingly similar variant, and from otherwise unfairly 
competing in any way with Plaintiff; 

 
vi. to deliver up to Plaintiff all literature, advertisements, business 

forms, signs, and any other representations, regardless of form, 
which are in, or come to be in, Defendants= respective 
possession, custody, or control and which bear the Infringing 
Marks or any confusingly similar variant; 

 
vii. to notify their direct customers, agents, and representatives that 

the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar variant are not 
connected with Plaintiff; 

 
viii. to immediately institute full compliance with any order entered 

by this Court, and, within thirty days following the date of entry 
of any preliminary or permanent injunctive relief issued by this 
Court, propound and file a statement, under oath and penalty of 
perjury, that each and every injunctive provision has been fully 
and completely complied with; 
 
and for: 

 
b. an accounting and payment of all profits gained by Defendants while 

engaging in the acts complained of herein; 
 

c. all monetary damages suffered by Plaintiff; 
 

d. an award of attorneys fees and costs pursuant to 15 U.S.C. ' 1125; and 
 

e. such other interlocutory and permanent relief as this Court may deem just 
and proper. 
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COUNT VIII 
FLORIDA TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT 

(Florida Statutes ' 495.151) 
 
110. Plaintiff repeats and realleges all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as if 

fully set forth herein. 

111. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, constitute an infringement of Plaintiff=s rights 

in and to its trade name as set forth in Florida Statutes ' 495.151 et seq. 

112. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, have caused irreparable injury and damage to 

Plaintiff, and, unless restrained, will continue to do so. 

113. As a result, Plaintiff has suffered damages with interest. 

114. Plaintiff has no adequate complete remedy at law. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants, including: 

a. a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining and restraining 
Defendants and their officers, directors, principals, agents, servants, 
employees, successors, assigns, attorneys, and all those persons in active 
concert or participation therewith who received actual notice of this Court=s 
orders: 

 
i. from causing likelihood of confusion, or causing mistake, or to 

deceive as to the affiliation, connection, or association of 
Defendants with Plaintiff or Plaintiff=s Mark or as to the origin, 
sponsorship, or approval of his or her goods, services, or 
commercial activities, or causing injury to business reputation, 
or dilution of the distinctiveness of Plaintiff=s Mark, or 
Plaintiff=s forms of advertisement; 

 
ii. from directly or indirectly falsely designating or representing 

that any goods or services are authorized, approved, associated 
with, or originating from, Plaintiff; 
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iii. from directly or indirectly using the Infringing Marks or any 

confusingly similar variant, which is likely to cause confusion or 
further irreparable harm to Plaintiff=s business reputation or 
goodwill; 

 
iv. from utilizing the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar 

variant in any shape or manner; 
 

v. from publishing, assembling, marketing, distributing, or 
otherwise utilizing any literature, business forms, printed 
matter, signs, or any other representations, regardless of the 
medium, which bear the Infringing Marks or any confusingly 
similar variant, and from otherwise unfairly competing in any 
way with Plaintiff; 

 
vi. to deliver up to Plaintiff all literature, printed matter, business 

forms, signs, and any other representations, regardless of form, 
which are in, or come to be in, Defendants= respective 
possession, custody, or control and which bear the Infringing 
Marks or any confusingly similar variant; 

 
vii. to notify their direct customers, agents, and representatives that 

the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar variant are not 
connected with Plaintiff; 

 
viii. to immediately institute full compliance with any order entered 

by this Court, and, within thirty days following the date of entry 
of any preliminary or permanent injunctive relief issued by this 
Court, propound and file a statement, under oath and penalty of 
perjury, that each and every injunctive provision has been fully 
and completely complied with; 

 
and for: 

 
b. an accounting and payment of all profits gained by Defendants while 

engaging in the acts complained of herein; 
 

c. all monetary damages suffered by Plaintiff; 
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d. an award of attorney=s fees and costs; and 

 
e. such other interlocutory and permanent relief as this Court may deem just 

and proper. 
 
 
 
  

 
COUNT IX 

FLORIDA DECEPTIVE AND UNFAIR TRADE PRACTICES 
(Florida Statutes ' 501.204 et seq.) 

 
115. Plaintiff repeats and realleges all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as if 

fully set forth herein. 

116. Defendants= deceptive, unfair and commercially exploitive acts, as alleged herein, 

were in bad faith and are in violation of the Florida Deceptive and Unfair Trade 

Practices Act, in violation of Florida Statutes ' 501.204, et seq. 

117. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, have caused irreparable injury to Plaintiff, and, 

unless restrained, will continue to do so. 

118. As a result, Plaintiff has suffered damages with interest. 

119. Plaintiff has no adequate, complete remedy at law. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants, including: 

a. a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining and restraining 
Defendants and their officers, directors, principals, agents, servants, 
employees, successors, assigns, attorneys, and all those persons in active 
concert or participation therewith who received actual notice of this Court=s 
orders: 
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i. from causing likelihood of confusion, or causing mistake, or to 

deceive as to the affiliation, connection, or association of 
Defendants with Plaintiff or Plaintiff=s Mark, or as to the origin, 
sponsorship, or approval of his or her goods, services, or 
commercial activities, or causing injury to business reputation, 
or dilution of the distinctiveness of Plaintiff=s Mark, or 
Plaintiff=s forms of advertisement;  

 
ii. from directly or indirectly falsely designating or representing 

that any goods or services are authorized, approved, associated 
with, or originating from, Plaintiff; 

 
iii. from directly or indirectly using the Infringing Marks or any 

confusingly similar variant, which is likely to cause confusion or 
further irreparable harm to Plaintiff=s business reputation or 
goodwill; 

 
iv. from utilizing the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar 

variant in any shape or manner; 
 

v. from publishing, assembling, marketing, distributing, or 
otherwise utilizing any literature, business forms, printed 
matter, signs, or any other representations, regardless of the 
medium, which bear the Infringing Marks or any confusingly 
similar variant, and from otherwise unfairly competing in any 
way with Plaintiff; 

 
vi. to deliver up to Plaintiff all literature, printed matter, business 

forms, signs, and any other representations, regardless of form, 
which are in, or come to be in, Defendants= respective 
possession, custody, or control and which bear the Infringing 
Marks or any confusingly similar variant; 

 
vii. to notify their direct customers, agents, and representatives that 

the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar variant are not 
connected with Plaintiff; 

 
viii. to immediately institute full compliance with any order entered 
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by this Court, and, within thirty days following the date of entry 
of any preliminary or permanent injunctive relief issued by this 
Court, propound and file a statement, under oath and penalty of 
perjury, that each and every injunctive provision has been fully 
and completely complied with; 

 
and for: 

 
b. an accounting and payment of all profits gained by Defendants while 

engaging in the acts complained of herein; 
 

c. all monetary damages suffered by Plaintiff; 
 

d. an award of attorneys fees and costs; and 
 

e. such other interlocutory and permanent relief as this Court may deem just 
and proper. 

  
 
 

COUNT X 
FLORIDA INJURY TO BUSINESS REPUTATION AND DILUTION 

(Florida Statutes ' 495.151 et seq.) 
 
120. Plaintiff repeats and realleges all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as if 

fully set forth herein. 

121. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, have caused, and are likely to cause, damage to 

Plaintiff by tarnishing Plaintiff=s valuable reputation and by diluting the 

distinctiveness of Plaintiff=s Mark in violation of Florida Statutes ' 495.151 et seq. 

122. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, have caused irreparable injury to Plaintiff, and, 

unless restrained, will continue to do so. 

123. As a result, Plaintiff has suffered damages with interest. 
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124. Plaintiff has no adequate, complete remedy at law. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants, including: 

a. a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining and restraining 
Defendants and their officers, directors, principals, agents, servants, 
employees, successors, assigns, attorneys, and all those persons in active 
concert or participation therewith who received actual notice of this Court=s 
orders: 

 
i. from causing likelihood of confusion, or causing mistake, or to 

deceive as to the affiliation, connection, or association of 
Defendants with Plaintiff or Plaintiff=s Mark, or as to the origin, 
sponsorship, or approval of his or her goods, services, or 
commercial activities, or causing injury to business reputation, 
or dilution of the distinctiveness of Plaintiff=s Mark, or 
Plaintiff=s forms of advertisement;  

 
ii. from directly or indirectly falsely designating or representing 

that any goods or services are authorized, approved, associated 
with, or originating from, Plaintiff; 

 
iii. from directly or indirectly using the Infringing Marks or any 

confusingly similar variant, which is likely to cause confusion or 
further irreparable harm to Plaintiff=s business reputation or 
goodwill; 

 
iv. from utilizing the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar 

variant in any shape or manner; 
 

v. from publishing, assembling, marketing, distributing, or 
otherwise utilizing any literature, business forms, printed 
matter, signs, or any other representations, regardless of the 
medium, which bear the Infringing Marks or any confusingly 
similar variant, and from otherwise unfairly competing in any 
way with Plaintiff; 

 
vi. to deliver up to Plaintiff all literature, printed matter, business 

forms, signs, and any other representations, regardless of form, 
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which are in, or come to be in, Defendants= respective 
possession, custody, or control and which bear the Infringing 
Marks or any confusingly similar variant; 

 
vii. to notify their direct customers, agents, and representatives that 

the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar variant are not 
connected with Plaintiff; 

 
viii. to immediately institute full compliance with any order entered 

by this Court, and, within thirty days following the date of entry 
of any preliminary or permanent injunctive relief issued by this 
Court, propound and file a statement, under oath and penalty of 
perjury, that each and every injunctive provision has been fully 
and completely complied with; 

 
and for: 

 
b. an accounting and payment of all profits gained by Defendants while 

engaging in the acts complained of herein; 
 

c. all monetary damages suffered by Plaintiff; 
 

d. an award of attorneys fees and costs; and 
 

e. such other interlocutory and permanent relief as this Court may deem just 
and proper. 

 
 
 
 
 

COUNT XI 
FLORIDA UNFAIR COMPETITION 

 
125. Plaintiff repeats and realleges all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as if 

fully set forth herein. 

126. Defendants= acts, as set forth herein, constitute Florida unfair competition in 
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violation of the Florida common law. 

127. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, have caused irreparable injury to Plaintiff and, 

unless restrained, will continue to do so. 

128. As a result, Plaintiff has suffered damages with interest. 

129. Plaintiff has no adequate, complete remedy at law. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants, including: 

a. a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining and restraining 
Defendants and their officers, directors, principals, agents, servants, 
employees, successors, assigns, attorneys, and all those persons in active 
concert or participation therewith who received actual notice of this Court=s 
orders: 

 
i. from causing likelihood of confusion, or causing mistake, or to 

deceive as to the affiliation, connection, or association of 
Defendants with Plaintiff or Plaintiff=s Mark, or as to the origin, 
sponsorship, or approval of his or her goods, services, or 
commercial activities, or causing injury to business reputation, 
or dilution of the distinctiveness of Plaintiff=s Mark, or 
Plaintiff=s forms of advertisement;  

 
ii. from directly or indirectly falsely designating or representing 

that any goods or services are authorized, approved, associated 
with, or originating from, Plaintiff; 

 
iii. from directly or indirectly using the Infringing Marks or any 

confusingly similar variant, which is likely to cause confusion or 
further irreparable harm to Plaintiff=s business reputation or 
goodwill; 

 
iv. from utilizing the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar 

variant in any shape or manner; 
 

v. from publishing, assembling, marketing, distributing, or 
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otherwise utilizing any literature, business forms, printed 
matter, signs, or any other representations, regardless of the 
medium, which bear the Infringing Marks or any confusingly 
similar variant, and from otherwise unfairly competing in any 
way with Plaintiff; 

 
vi. to deliver up to Plaintiff all literature, printed matter, business 

forms, signs, and any other representations, regardless of form, 
which are in, or come to be in, Defendants= respective 
possession, custody, or control and which bear the Infringing 
Marks or any confusingly similar variant; 

 
vii. to notify their direct customers, agents, and representatives that 

the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar variant are not 
connected with Plaintiff; 

 
viii. to immediately institute full compliance with any order entered 

by this Court, and, within thirty days following the date of entry 
of any preliminary or permanent injunctive relief issued by this 
Court, propound and file a statement, under oath and penalty of 
perjury, that each and every injunctive provision has been fully 
and completely complied with; 

 
and for: 

 
b. an accounting and payment of all profits gained by Defendants while 

engaging in the acts complained of herein; 
 

c. all monetary damages suffered by Plaintiff; 
 

d. an award of attorneys fees and costs; and 
 

e. such other interlocutory and permanent relief as this Court may deem just 
and proper. 
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COUNT XII 
UNJUST ENRICHMENT 

 
130. Plaintiff repeats and realleges all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as if 

fully set forth herein. 

131. Defendants= acts, as set forth herein, result in unjust enrichment to the Defendants, 

in violation of the Florida common law. 

132. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, have caused irreparable injury to Plaintiff and, 

unless restrained, will continue to do so. 

133. As a result, Plaintiff has suffered damages with interest. 

134. Plaintiff has no adequate, complete remedy at law. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants, including: 

a. a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining and restraining 
Defendants and their officers, directors, principals, agents, servants, 
employees, successors, assigns, attorneys, and all those persons in active 
concert or participation therewith who received actual notice of this Court=s 
orders: 

 
i. from causing likelihood of confusion, or causing mistake, or to 

deceive as to the affiliation, connection, or association of 
Defendants with Plaintiff or Plaintiff=s Mark, or as to the origin, 
sponsorship, or approval of his or her goods, services, or 
commercial activities, or causing injury to business reputation, 
or dilution of the distinctiveness of Plaintiff=s Mark, or 
Plaintiff=s forms of advertisement;  

 
ii. from directly or indirectly falsely designating or representing 

that any goods or services are authorized, approved, associated 
with, or originating from, Plaintiff; 
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iii. from directly or indirectly using the Infringing Marks or any 
confusingly similar variant, which is likely to cause confusion or 
further irreparable harm to Plaintiff=s business reputation or 
goodwill; 

 
iv. from utilizing the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar 

variant in any shape or manner; 
 

v. from publishing, assembling, marketing, distributing, or 
otherwise utilizing any literature, business forms, printed 
matter, signs, or any other representations, regardless of the 
medium, which bear the Infringing Marks or any confusingly 
similar variant, and from otherwise unfairly competing in any 
way with Plaintiff; 

 
vi. to deliver up to Plaintiff all literature, printed matter, business 

forms, signs, and any other representations, regardless of form, 
which are in, or come to be in, Defendants= respective 
possession, custody, or control and which bear the Infringing 
Marks or any confusingly similar variant; 

 
vii. to notify their direct customers, agents, and representatives that 

the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar variant are not 
connected with Plaintiff; 

 
viii. to immediately institute full compliance with any order entered 

by this Court, and, within thirty days following the date of entry 
of any preliminary or permanent injunctive relief issued by this 
Court, propound and file a statement, under oath and penalty of 
perjury, that each and every injunctive provision has been fully 
and completely complied with; 

 
and for: 

 
b. an accounting and payment of all profits gained by Defendants while 

engaging in the acts complained of herein; 
 

c. all monetary damages suffered by Plaintiff; 
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d. an award of attorneys fees and costs; and 
 

e. such other interlocutory and permanent relief as this Court may deem just 
and proper. 

 
 

 
COUNT XIII 

FLORIDA MISAPPROPRIATION 
 

135. Plaintiff repeats and realleges all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as if 

fully set forth herein. 

136. Defendants= acts, as set forth herein, constitute misappropriation in violation of the 

Florida common law. 

137. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, have caused irreparable injury to Plaintiff and, 

unless restrained, will continue to do so. 

138. As a result, Plaintiff has suffered damages with interest. 

139. Plaintiff has no adequate, complete remedy at law. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants, including: 

a. a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining and restraining 
Defendants and their officers, directors, principals, agents, servants, 
employees, successors, assigns, attorneys, and all those persons in active 
concert or participation therewith who received actual notice of this Court=s 
orders: 

 
i. from causing likelihood of confusion, or causing mistake, or to 

deceive as to the affiliation, connection, or association of 
Defendants with Plaintiff or Plaintiff=s Mark, or as to the origin, 
sponsorship, or approval of his or her goods, services, or 
commercial activities, or causing injury to business reputation, 
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or dilution of the distinctiveness of Plaintiff=s Mark, or 
Plaintiff=s forms of advertisement;  

 
ii. from directly or indirectly falsely designating or representing 

that any goods or services are authorized, approved, associated 
with, or originating from, Plaintiff; 

 
iii. from directly or indirectly using the Infringing Marks or any 

confusingly similar variant, which is likely to cause confusion or 
further irreparable harm to Plaintiff=s business reputation or 
goodwill; 

 
iv. from utilizing the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar 

variant in any shape or manner; 
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v. from publishing, assembling, marketing, distributing, or 
otherwise utilizing any literature, business forms, printed 
matter, signs, or any other representations, regardless of the 
medium, which bear the Infringing Marks or any confusingly 
similar variant, and from otherwise unfairly competing in any 
way with Plaintiff; 

 
vi. to deliver up to Plaintiff all literature, printed matter, business 

forms, signs, and any other representations, regardless of form, 
which are in, or come to be in, Defendants= respective 
possession, custody, or control and which bear the Infringing 
Marks or any confusingly similar variant; 

 
vii. to notify their direct customers, agents, and representatives that 

the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar variant is not 
connected with Plaintiff; 

 
viii. to immediately institute full compliance with any order entered 

by this Court, and, within thirty days following the date of entry 
of any preliminary or permanent injunctive relief issued by this 
Court, propound and file a statement, under oath and penalty of 
perjury, that each and every injunctive provision has been fully 
and completely complied with; 

 
and for: 

 
b. an accounting and payment of all profits gained by Defendants while 

engaging in the acts complained of herein; 
 

c. all monetary damages suffered by Plaintiff; 
 

d. an award of attorneys fees and costs; and 
 

e. such other interlocutory and permanent relief as this Court may deem just 
and proper. 
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COUNT XIV 
FLORIDA FALSE DESIGNATION OF ORIGIN 

 
140. Plaintiff repeats and realleges all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as if 

fully set forth herein.  

141. Defendants= acts, as set forth herein, constitute false designation of origin in 

violation of the Florida common law. 

142. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, have caused irreparable injury to Plaintiff and, 

unless restrained, will continue to do so. 

143. As a result, Plaintiff has suffered damages with interest. 

144. Plaintiff has no adequate, complete remedy at law. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants, including: 

i. a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining and 
restraining Defendants and their officers, directors, principals, 
agents, servants, employees, successors, assigns, attorneys, and 
all those persons in active concert or participation therewith who 
received actual notice of this Court=s orders: from causing 
likelihood of confusion, or causing mistake, or to deceive as to 
the affiliation, connection, or association of Defendants with 
Plaintiff or Plaintiff=s Mark, or as to the origin, sponsorship, or 
approval of his or her goods, services, or commercial activities, 
or causing injury to business reputation, or dilution of the 
distinctiveness of Plaintiff=s Mark, or Plaintiff=s forms of 
advertisement;  

 
ii. from directly or indirectly falsely designating or representing 

that any goods or services are authorized, approved, associated 
with, or originating from, Plaintiff; 

 
iii. from directly or indirectly using the Infringing Marks or any 

confusingly similar variant, which is likely to cause confusion or 
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further irreparable harm to Plaintiff=s business reputation or 
goodwill; 

 
iv. from utilizing the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar 

variant in any shape or manner; 
 

v. from publishing, assembling, marketing, distributing, or 
otherwise utilizing any literature, business forms, printed 
matter, signs, or any other representations, regardless of the 
medium, which bear the Infringing Marks or any confusingly 
similar variant, and from otherwise unfairly competing in any 
way with Plaintiff; 

 
vi. to deliver up to Plaintiff all literature, printed matter, business 

forms, signs, and any other representations, regardless of form, 
which are in, or come to be in, Defendants= respective 
possession, custody, or control and which bear the Infringing 
Marks or any confusingly similar variant; 

 
vii. to notify their direct customers, agents, and representatives that 

the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar variant are not 
connected with Plaintiff; 

 
viii. to immediately institute full compliance with any order entered 

by this Court, and, within thirty days following the date of entry 
of any preliminary or permanent injunctive relief issued by this 
Court, propound and file a statement, under oath and penalty of 
perjury, that each and every injunctive provision has been fully 
and completely complied with; 
 
and for: 

 
b. an accounting and payment of all profits gained by Defendants while 

engaging in the acts complained of herein; 
 

c. all monetary damages suffered by Plaintiff; 
 

d. an award of attorneys fees and costs; and 
 

e. such other interlocutory and permanent relief as this Court may deem just 
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and proper. 
 
 

 
COUNT XV 

FLORIDA PASSING OFF 
 

145. Plaintiff repeats and realleges all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as if 

fully set forth herein. 

146. Defendants= acts, as set forth herein, constitute, passing off in violation of the 

Florida common law. 

147. Defendants= acts, as alleged herein, have caused irreparable injury to Plaintiff and, 

unless restrained, will continue to do so. 

148. As a result, Plaintiff has suffered damages with interest. 

149. Plaintiff has no adequate, complete remedy at law. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants, including: 

a. a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining and restraining 
Defendants and their officers, directors, principals, agents, servants, 
employees, successors, assigns, attorneys, and all those persons in active 
concert or participation therewith who received actual notice of this Court=s 
orders: 

 
i. from causing likelihood of confusion, or causing mistake, or to 

deceive as to the affiliation, connection, or association of 
Defendants with Plaintiff or Plaintiff=s Mark, or as to the origin, 
sponsorship, or approval of his or her goods, services, or 
commercial activities, or causing injury to business reputation, 
or dilution of the distinctiveness of Plaintiff=s Mark, or 
Plaintiff=s forms of advertisement;  

 
ii. from directly or indirectly falsely designating or representing 
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that any goods or services are authorized, approved, associated 
with, or originating from, Plaintiff; 

 
iii. from directly or indirectly using the Infringing Marks or any 

confusingly similar variant, which is likely to cause confusion or 
further irreparable harm to Plaintiff=s business reputation or 
goodwill; 

 
iv. from utilizing the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar 

variant in any shape or manner; 
 

v. from publishing, assembling, marketing, distributing, or 
otherwise utilizing any literature, business forms, printed 
matter, signs, or any other representations, regardless of the 
medium, which bear the Infringing Marks or any confusingly 
similar variant, and from otherwise unfairly competing in any 
way with Plaintiff; 

 
 

vi. to deliver up to Plaintiff all literature, printed matter, business 
forms, signs, and any other representations, regardless of form, 
which are in, or come to be in, Defendants= respective 
possession, custody, or control and which bear the Infringing 
Marks or any confusingly similar variant; 

 
vii. to notify their direct customers, agents, and representatives that 

the Infringing Marks or any confusingly similar variant are not 
connected with Plaintiff; 

 
viii. to immediately institute full compliance with any order entered 

by this Court, and, within thirty days following the date of entry 
of any preliminary or permanent injunctive relief issued by this 
Court, propound and file a statement, under oath and penalty of 
perjury, that each and every injunctive provision has been fully 
and completely complied with; 

 
and for 

 
b. an accounting and payment of all profits gained by Defendants while 

engaging in the acts complained of herein, all monetary damages suffered 
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by Plaintiff, an award of attorneys fees and costs; and such other 
interlocutory and permanent relief as this Court may deem just and proper, 
and 
 

c. Plaintiff requests a jury trial on all issues so triable. 
 

                     
 
 Respectfully submitted,  
 

/s/JENNIFER L. WHITELAW 
JENNIFER L. WHITELAW 
WHITELAW LEGAL GROUP 
Trial Counsel for Plaintiff 
PHELAN HOLDINGS, INC. 

                          Florida Bar No. 0938629 
3838 Tamiami Trail North, Third Floor 
Naples, Florida 34103 
Telephone:  239-262-1001 
Facsimile:  239-261-0057 
Email: usdcmail@whitelawfirm.com 
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Show more results from citysearch.com
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Change location

Show search tools

national.citysearch.com/listings/cape-coral-fl-metro/81139?...
- Cached
Results 1 - 9 of 9 – Citysearch ® helps you find Wendy's
International Inc locations in Cape Coral, FL, ... You can't
fake fresh!® That is the standard that… ...

Cape Coral, FL Wendy's International Inc
Locations on Citysearch

national.citysearch.com/listings/naples-fl-metro/81569?
chainId... - Cached
Citysearch ® helps you find Wendy's International Inc
locations in Naples ...

Naples, FL Wendy's International Inc Locations on
Citysearch

www.radioads.com/RadioAds.asp?ad=wendys...90.9...
- Cached
At Wendy's we like to say you can't fake fresh. Yep. So
hat's why our new Baja Salad has hand made pico de Gayo.
pico De Gaio! Yep. ...

Radio Ad for WENDY'S RESTAURANT in
montgomery Area stations WHYY ...

bluwiki.com/go/Wendys_coupons - Cached
Mar 19, 2011 – Learn how to find Wendy's coupons. ... Their
current campaign is "You can't fake real" and features many
real life videos ... As tastes change, Wendy's always seems
to change with them, introducing fresh menu items that ...

Free Wendy's Coupons. Online Printable Wendys
Coupon Codes - 2011 ...

www.healthhabits.ca/2010/09/05/wendys-fake-real/
- Cached
Sep 5, 2010 – In their new advertising campaign, Wendy's
says that "You Can't Fake Real" And maybe they're right
Maybe "YOU" can't fake real - but Wendy's ...

Wendy's – You Can't Fake Real

willowbrookfarmcsa.blogspot.com/.../well-lots-going-on-here-
well-... - Cached
May 18, 2011 – Like I always say "you can't fake fresh" it's
addicting. We like to choose varieties with flavour and
nutrition in mind and I keep trying a ...

Willow Brook Farm & CSA: Hello Amherstview

►

× SafeSearch strict ▼can't fake fresh wendy's
Advanced searchAbout 8,140,000 results (0.24 seconds) 

Web Images Videos Maps News Shopping Gmail more Sign in
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Search Help  Give us feedback

Google Home Advertising Programs Business Solutions
Privacy About Google

aworldofprogress.com › Home › a world of progress
- Cached
Wendy's real? Not really. By lisa wines | Aug 2, 2010 // 2
Comments. I don't watch TV very often. ... And yet again: You
can't fake real. Oh, yes you can. ... Or, do they fly freshly
slaughtered beef to each city every morning? ...

Wendy's real? Not really | progressive living

www.grubgrade.com/.../fast-food-review-new-berry-almond-
chicke... - Cached
Jun 13, 2011 – All that being said, I can't remember the last
time I actually ... but a fresh, light, and composed assortment
of seasonal vegetables? Haha, good luck with that. Of
course, every once in a while a place like Wendy's will roll
the ... that relied too much on a bitter and fake tasting Asiago
cheese, ...

GrubGrade | Fast Food Review: New! Berry
Almond Chicken Salad from ...

www.youtube.com/watch?v=YNDuerLmyS4 - Cached
Oct 22, 2009 – You Can't fake real balloon spoof. ... Added
to queue Danny's Wendys Commercial 2009by
fourmonkeysplus23838 views · Thumbnail 0:32. Add to ...

YouTube - wendy's

www.yelp.com › Restaurants › Italian - Cached
 42 reviews - Price range: $$$

"...was fresh and high-quality -- you can't fake a summer
tomato or olive oil. .... Review from Wendy W. Photo of
Wendy W. 0friends. 17reviews ...

Gigino Wagner Park - Battery Park - New York, NY
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These search terms are highlighted: can t fake real wendy's  

Home

Sunday, August 1, 2010
Wendy's: Real? Not Really.

I don't watch TV very often. I don't own one. I owned one for a
while when I lived in the states, but it sat like a boat anchor on my
bedroom table or on a cabinet in my living room and never had
cable juice coursing through its veins until two momentous
occasions: 9/11 and the arrival of a new boyfriend. Both occasions
temporarily got me all riled up, but now, not so much.

However, to maintain my sense of humor while sorting through the
moldy cheese, rotten vegetables, wormy meat scraps and bloated
fish guts of the vast rotting wasteland of American politics (Wow,
even I'm impressed by that sentence), I need to watch Jon Stewart
and Stephen Colbert. Somehow, it gives me hope that those two
brilliant guys (and their brilliant writers) can still manage to make
jokes - 4 days a week! - about the compost bin of American media
and the mostly-pasty-white-guy world of America's corporate-owned
politics.

I also like to watch Rachel Maddow. She's not as funny, but she's so
smart, like genius smart, that she makes me proud to be a woman. 

But, let's get back to America being corporate-owned. I'm including
our illustrious media in this sweeping but true generalization, of
course. So, for me living in France, that means I'm blocked from
watching American TV shows online. The Comedy Central
mouthpieces say it's because they don't have advertising rights in
my country. Because, ya know, advertisers really dictate where these
independent (hahaha!) television companies can show their ads, er,
I mean, independent TV shows.

The hottest places in hell are
reserved for those who in
times of great moral crisis
maintain their neutrality.
~ Dante Alighieri

Men never commit evil so
fully and joyfully as when
they do it for religious
convictions.
~ Blaise Pascal

The price good men pay for
indifference to public affairs
is to be ruled by evil men.
~ Plato 429-347 B.C.

The dogs bark, but the
caravan moves on.
~ Arab Proverb

Why, madame, do I not
destroy my enemies when I
make them my friends?
~ Abraham Lincoln

Thou shall not be a
perpetrator; thou shall not be
a victim; and thou shall
never, but never, be a
bystander.
~ Yehuda Bauer

Share  Report Abuse  Next Blog» Create Blog  Sign In
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But, I'm a geek. So I found a way around those bastards. I installed
an add-on for Firefox that makes me look like I live in Ohio (or
maybe Wasilla, right on Sarah Palin's Russia-gazing porch). It's
called "X-Forwarded-For Spoofer" or spoofing, for short. This online
anarchy allows me to watch the full episodes of Stewart and Colbert,
instead of having to watch tiny, edited-down segments.

It also means that now, like all patriotic American consumers, I also
have to watch the ads. So, I guess there's no way to get around
those bastards after all. But at least I can catch up on  the audacity
of corporate propaganda and actually be hip to the latest Old Spice
mania. Old Spice. The cologne that Jim Gardner, my first-ever date,
bathed in prior to donning his Inspector Clouseau trench coat,
climbing into the back seat of his dad's Mercury, directing his dad to
my house, where he didn't have to face my mother or father, but
just our babysitter, Mrs. Schick. From there, his dad dropped us off
at the movies, where Jim yawned in order to put his arm around me
and then, before the credits rolled, escorted me out back behind the
theatre so he could steal one fat, lolling tongue kiss. All I remember
is how giant his tongue was and how disgusting his perfume.

But, with the power of clever and humorous advertising with a deep-
voiced handsome dude named Isaiah Mustafa, Old Spice is having
the revival of its life. It still smells like crap, though.

Meanwhile, Wendy's - a giant, global, fast-food restaurant - has a
brand spanking new campaign with the tag line: You know when it's
real. And yet again: You can't fake real.

Oh, yes you can.

Having written advertising copy most of my career, I went to
Wendy's's (I couldn't resist making fun of the name they came up
with that will be so "unique" in it's pain-in-the-assness, that it will
surely be "memorable") website and recognized the time-honored
technique: use words and phrases that suggest or imply what you
want consumers to believe about your product, but never actually
say anything that might be construed as a lie. Or, use all the
emotional keywords you can find, in sentences that seem like they
mean something, but actually mean nothing.

After all, in a country where fake is the norm, why not start an ad
campaign trashing fake and implying that you, alone in the
wilderness of fakedom, are the only one who is real. Brilliant.
Except for the fact that Wendy's food is STILL not real. But, why
dither with the details?

Because, I enjoy dithering. And because the very same people who
believe Wendy's's's and other corporate bullshit also believe political
propaganda and vote for snotty little ignoramuses like George W.
Bush.

So, here's the run-down...

We become absorbed with our
abstract arguments, our
ideological disputes, our
contests for power. And in
this Tower of Babel, we lose
the sound of God's voice.
~ Barack Obama

If you're idealistic, you have a
moral obligation to be
pragmatic.
~ Barney Frank

Facts have a well-known
liberal bias.
~ Stephen Colbert

I always thought Libertarians
were Republicans that smoke
dope.
~ Gary Amstutz

History will have to record
that the greatest tragedy of
this period of social transition
was not the strident clamor of
the bad people, but the
appalling silence of the good
people.
~ Martin Luther King, Jr.
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So, do they slaughter the
cows behind each restaurant?
Or do they contract with a
slaughter house in each city
where there's a Wendy's? Or,
do they fly freshly slaughtered
beef to each city every
morning? And what do the
cows eat, may I ask? Are they
still injected with growth
hormones? Are they force-fed

and kept in pens, never to wander or graze upon the great plains of
our nation? Do they eat pesticide-laden grain?

Who gives a damn if they freeze their beef if it's poison to begin
with? They're just making all this shit up. People will start saying to
their friends, while discussing which fast-food joint they want to
visit to assuage their hangover pangs or stoner munchies, "You
know, Wendy's beef is never frozen!" Like this is a startling,
undeniable, life-changing fact, along the same lines as, "George
Bush made America safe."

And what does "cut, chopped
and prepared with the same
dedication to quality" actually
mean? Well, nothing. How do
you chop with quality in
mind? I suppose avoiding the
addition of your fingertips
into the tomato bits is a start.

But other than that, I can't imagine. And the fact that another
mega-corporation, Heinz, is the exclusive maker of Wendy's's's
ketchup means what, exactly? Why is that a benefit to me? If the
mother of the Wendy's day manager made the ketchup, I'd probably
go there just to try it. But some big-ass corporation making the
ketchup is supposed to be a selling point?

And of course, there's chicken.

I guess I should be happy to know that their chicken isn't mystery
meat. But the only time that "finest quality meats" is true is when
the chickens are pesticide-free, hormone-free and free-range. Oh,
and notice that they don't say anything about whether their chicken
is as unfrozen as their beef. And what about us poor sods who like
dark meat? Even their "wings" are made from breasts. Oh, I forgot!
It's America, where white is right and brown should be drowned in
the Rio Grande before it can sneak across the border.
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Like

But then, there are the apples. Just say
this out loud a few times and try and
think about what it means: Always-In-
Season Fruit. Are they saying that they
only serve fruit when it's in season?
No, because the apple-pecan chicken
salad is on the menu year-round.
They're saying that their red and green
apples are "rotated seasonally." What

does that mean? Are they trying to say that they use green apples
when they are in season and red ones when they are in season? I
can only guess that since apple season (no matter what the color) is
in the Fall, that they either pick the apples and store them and use
them or they buy apples from other parts of the world when they are
in season there. But again, they aren't sayin' that the apples are
pesticide-free, so, in-season, no matter how they slice it, is a moot
point.

I DID notice that Wendy's's website says that they offer Marzetti's
all-natural salad dressings but they didn't say "organic" so I'm not
sure they are actually using Marzetti's line of certified organic
dressings, or not. At this point, I don't trust Wendy's's's. But, I really
should. After all...

The fact that a giant chain of fast-food restaurants can spend a
fortune to purposely design an ad campaign that pretends they are
not selling factory-raised and factory-processed animals, fruits and
vegetables and that this Big Lie goes unchallenged in the media and
in the minds of most American consumers, is a testament to the fact
that corporate marketers and Madison Avenue advertising agencies
believe that American consumers are ignorant sheep.

They're laughing at us sheep (Baaahhh!), all the way to the bank.
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Wendy's is garbage... as is food from most chain restaurants... and sad to
say, American consumers ARE ignorant sheep, look at the lines outside any
Wendy's at noon. Sad to say, the American consumer market will never be
like Europe's because Americans are willing to buy crap in exchange for
convenience. Idiocy...
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Wendy's: Real? Not Really. http://ff.im/-oEzjv
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